BYLAWS

Previously Unalterable Provision

The Society shall be carried on without purpose or gain for its Members and no part of any income of the Society shall be payable or otherwise available for the personal benefit of the Members thereof, and any profits or other accretions of the Society shall be used in promoting its objects. This provision is unalterable.

PART 1 – Interpretation

- 1. In these bylaws unless context otherwise requires.
 - a. "directors" means the directors of the Society for the time being.
 - b. "Society Act" means the Society Act of the Province of British Columbia from time to time in force and all amendments to it.
 - c. "registered address" of a member means his address as recorded in the register of members.
- 2. The definitions in the Society Act on the date these bylaws became effective apply to these bylaws.
- 3. Words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa; and words importing a male person include a female person and a corporation.

Part 2 - Membership

- 1. The members of the Society are the applicants for incorporation of the Society, and those persons who subsequently become members, in accordance with these bylaws and, in either case, have not ceased to be members.
- 2. A person may apply to the directors for membership in the Society and upon acceptance of such application by a simple majority of the directors, shall be a member.
- 3. Every member shall uphold the constitution and comply with these bylaws.
- 4. The amount of the first annual membership dues shall be determined by the directors and after that the annual membership dues shall be determined at the annual general membership meeting of the Society.
- 5. A person shall cease to be a member of the Society.

- a. by delivering his resignation in writing to the secretary of the Society or by mailing or delivering it to the address of the Society; or
- b. on his death or in the case of a corporation on dissolution; or
- c. on being expelled; or
- d. on having been a member not in good standing for twelve (12) consecutive months.
- 6. A member may be expelled by a special resolution of the members passed at a general meeting.
 - a. The notice of special resolution shall be accompanied by a brief statement of the reason or reasons for the proposed expulsion.
 - b. The person who is the subject of the proposed resolution for expulsion shall be given an opportunity to be heard at the general meeting before the special resolution is put to a vote.
- 7. All members are in good standing except.
 - a. Subject to paragraph 9 (b) below, a member who has failed to pay his current annual membership fee or any other subscription or debt due and owing by him to the Society and he is not in good standing so long as the debt remains unpaid.
 - b. The directors may, by unanimous consent, waive from time to time the non-payment by a member of the fees or debts referred to in paragraph 9 (a) above, and in such case the member shall be deemed to be in good standing.

Part 3 – Meetings of Members

- 1. General meetings of the Society shall be held at the time and place, in accordance with the Society Act that the directors decide.
- 2. Every general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, is an extraordinary general meeting.
- 3. The directors may, when they think fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.
 - a. Notice of a general meeting shall specify the place, day, and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of special business, the general nature of that business.
 - b. The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting to, or the non-receipt of a notice by, any of the members entitled to receive notice does not invalidate proceedings at that meeting
- 4. The first annual general meeting of the Society shall be held not more than fifteen (15) months after the date of incorporation and after that an annual general meeting shall be held at least once in every calendar year not more than fifteen (15) months after the holding of the last preceding annual general meeting.

Part 4 – Proceedings at General Meetings

- 1. Special business is:
 - a. All business at an extraordinary general meeting except the adoption of rules of order; and
 - b. All business transacted at an annual general meeting, except.
 - i. the adoption of rules of order.
 - ii. the consideration of the financial statement.
 - iii. the report of the directors.
 - iv. the report of the auditor, if any.
 - v. the election of directors.
 - vi. the appointment of the auditor, if required; and
 - vii. the other business that, under these bylaws, ought to be transacted at an annual general meeting, or business which is brought under consideration by the report of the directors issued with the notice convening the meeting.
- 2. No business, other than the election of a chair and the adjournment or termination of the meeting, shall be conducted at a general meeting at a time when a quorum is not present.
 - a. If at any time during a general meeting there ceases to be a quorum present, business then in progress shall be suspended until there is a quorum present or until the meeting is adjourned or terminated.
 - b. A quorum of five (5) members present or a greater number that the members determine at a general meeting, and a member is permitted to attend any meeting of the Society by telephone or online conference call.
- 3. If within fifteen (15) minutes from the time appointed for a general meeting a quorum is not present, the meeting, if convened on the requisition of members, shall be terminated; but in any other case, it shall stand adjourned to the same day in the next week, at the same time and place, and if, at the adjourned meeting, a quorum is not present within fifteen (15) minutes from the time appointed for the meeting, the members present will be deemed to constitute a quorum.
- 4. Subject to Part 4 (5), the president of the Society, the vice-president or in the absence of both, one of the other directors' present, shall preside as chair of a general meeting.
- 5. If at a general meeting:
 - a. there is no president, vice-president, or other director present within fifteen (15) minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting; or
 - b. the president and all the other directors are unwilling to act as chair; the members present shall choose one of their number to be chair.
- 6. A general meeting may be adjourned from time to time and from place to place, but no business shall be transacted at an adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the time of the meeting from which the adjournment took place.

- a. When a meeting is adjourned to thirty (30) days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of the original meeting.
- b. Except as provided by this bylaw, it is not necessary to give notice of an adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned general meeting.
- 7. No resolution proposed at a meeting need be seconded and the chair of a meeting may move or propose a resolution.
- 8. A member in good standing present at a meeting of members is entitled to one vote.
 - a. Voting is by show of hands.
 - b. A simple majority (50% + 1) determines the vote.
 - c. In the case of an equality of votes the chair shall not have a casting or second vote in addition to the vote to which he may be entitled as a member and the proposed resolution shall not pass.
 - d. Voting by proxy is permitted, provided that a proxy, in a form determined by the directors, is only valid during the dates (maximum sixty (60) days) or for the specific meeting or meetings noted on the face of the proxy.
 - e. A corporate member may vote by its authorized representative, who is entitled to speak and vote, and in all other respects exercise the rights of a member, and that representative shall be reckoned as a member for all purposes with respect to a meeting of the Society.

Part 5 – Directors and Officers

- 1. The Society shall a board consisting of a minimum of five (5) up to a maximum of eleven (11) members all of whom will be members of the Society in good standing and have attained the age of 18 years.
- 2. Board members shall serve two-year (2) terms.
- 3. Half of the directors will be elected at each annual general meeting.
- 4. The directors may exercise all the powers and do all the acts and things that the Society may exercise and do, and which are not by these bylaws or by statute or otherwise lawfully directed or required to be exercised or done by the Society in general meeting, nevertheless, to
 - a. all laws affecting the Society; and
 - b. these bylaws; and
 - c. rules, not being inconsistent with these bylaws, which are made from time to time by the Society in general meeting.
- 5. No rule, made by the Society in a general meeting, invalidates a prior act of the directors that would have been valid if that rule had not been made.

- 6. There will be four (4) officers of the Society who will be appointed by the board following the annual general meeting and reported to the membership within thirty (30) days. These shall be: President, Vice-president, Secretary and Financial Officer.
- 7. Those directors who have served two (years) shall retire from office at each annual general meeting when their successors shall be elected.
 - a. Elections will be by secret ballot.
 - b. An election may be by acclamation.
- 8. The directors may at any time and from time to time appoint any member in good standing to fill a vacancy in the directors.
 - a. Any director so appointed holds office only until the next annual general meeting but is eligible for election at that meeting.
- 9. If an officer resigns his office or otherwise ceases to hold office, the remaining directors shall appoint an individual to take the place of the former officer.
 - a. The resigning officer may continue to serve as a director.
- 10. If a director knowingly consumes alcohol or a mood-altering drug no prescribed by a physician licensed to prescribe, that director shall be deemed to have resigned his position and the position shall thereupon be filled as provided herein.
- 11. No act or proceeding of the directors is invalid only by reason of there being less than the prescribed number of directors in office.
- 12. No director shall be remunerated for being or acting as a director, but a director shall be reimbursed for all expenses necessarily incurred by him while engaged in the affairs of the Society.

Part 6 – Proceedings of Directors

- 1. The directors may meet together at the places they think fit to dispatch business, adjourn, and otherwise regulate their meetings and proceedings as they see fit.
- 2. The directors may from time to time fix the quorum necessary to transact business, and unless so fixed the quorum shall be a majority of the directors then in office.
- 3. The president shall chair all meetings of the directors, but if at a meeting the president is not present within fifteen (15) minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the vice-president shall act as chair; but if neither is present the directors present may choose one of their members to be chair at their meeting.
- 4. A director may at any time request, and the secretary, on the request of said director, shall, convene a meeting of the directors.
- 5. The directors may delegate any, but not all, of their own powers to committees consisting of a director, directors, or members in good standing as they think fit.

- a. Such a committee so formed in the exercise of the powers so delegated shall conform to any rules imposed on it by the directors, and shall report everything done in exercise of those powers to the earliest meeting of the directors to be held after it has been done.
- b. A committee shall elect a chair of its meetings; but if no chair is elected, or if at a meeting the chair is not present within fifteen (15) minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the directors present who are members of the committee shall choose one of their members to be chair of the meeting.
- c. The members of a committee may meet and adjourn as they think proper.
- 6. For a first meeting of directors held immediately following the appointment or election of a director or directors at an annual or other general meeting of members, or for a meeting of directors at which a director is appointed to fill a vacancy in the directors, it is not necessary to give notice of the meeting to the newly elected or appointed director or directors for the meeting to be constituted, if a quorum of the directors is not present.
- 7. A director who may be absent temporarily from Canada may send or deliver to the address of the Society a waiver of notice, which may be by letter, electronic mail or facsimile transmission, of any meeting of the directors and may at any time withdraw the waiver, and until the waiver is withdrawn.
 - a. No notice of meeting shall be sent to that director: and
 - b. Any and all meetings of the directors of the Society, notice of which has not been given to that director shall, if a quorum of the directors is present, be valid and effective.
- 8. Questions arising at a meeting of the directors and committees shall be decided by a simple majority (50% +1) of votes.
 - a. In the case of an equality of votes the chair does not have a second or casting vote, the question will then fail.
- 9. No resolution proposed at a meeting of directors or committees need be seconded and the chair of a meeting may move or propose a resolution.
- 10. A resolution in writing, signed by all the directors and placed with the minutes of the directors is as valid and as effective as if regularly passed at a meeting of directors.

Part 7 – Duties of Officers

- 1. The president shall preside at all meetings of the Society and of the directors.
 - a. The president is the chief executive officer of the Society and shall supervise the other officers in the execution of their duties.
- 2. The vice-president shall carry out the duties of the president during his absence.
- 3. The secretary shall:
 - a. conduct the correspondence of the Society; and

- b. issue notices of meeting of the Society and directors; and
- c. keep minutes of all meetings of the Society and directors; and
- d. have custody of all records and documents of the Society except those required to be kept by the financial officer; and
- e. maintain the register of members.
- 4. The financial officer shall:
 - a. keep the financial records, including books of account, necessary to comply with the Society Act; and
 - b. render financial statements to the directors, members and others when required.
- 5. In the absence of the secretary from a meeting, the directors shall appoint another person to act as secretary at the meeting.

Part 8 - Seal

1. The Society is not required to have a common seal.

Part 9 – Borrowing

1. The Society is not allowed to borrow money under any circumstances.

Part 10 – Auditor

- 1. This part applies only where the Society is required or has resolved to have an auditor
- 2. The first auditor shall be appointed by the directors who shall also fill all vacancies occurring in the office of auditor.
- 3. At each annual general meeting, the Society shall appoint an auditor to hold office until he is re-elected, or his successor is elected at the next annual general meeting.
- 4. An auditor can be removed by ordinary resolution
- 5. No director and no employee of the Society shall be an auditor.
- 6. The auditor may attend general meetings.

Part 11 – Notices to Members

- 1. Notice of a general meeting shall be given to:
 - a. every member shown on the register of members on the day notice is given; and
 - b. the auditor if Part 10 applies.

Part 12 – Winding Up

1. In the event of winding up or dissolution of the Society, funds and assets of the Society remaining after the satisfaction of its debts and liabilities shall be given or transferred to such organization or organizations concerned with the social problems or organizations promoting the same purposes of this Society as may be determined by the members of the Society at the end of winding up or dissolution, and if effect cannot be given to the aforesaid provisions, then such funds shall be given or transferred to some other organization which shall be a charitable organization or charity recognized by the department of National Revenues being qualified as such under the provisions of the Income Tax Act of Canada from time to time in effect.

Dated: The 6th day of November 2009

Revised October 2018

Revised October 2020

Bylaw Addition – November 2025 Approved by Board of Directors for the LifeRing Canada AGM

FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY OF LIFERING CANADA AND LIFERING CANADA CONVENORS

LifeRing Secular Recovery Canada Society is a registered Charity and solely dependent on donations for its operation.

LifeRing Canada meeting Convenors and Co-Convenors are the persons responsible for the financial accountability of each meeting of LifeRing Canada.

All meetings held are encouraged to advertise (Online Meetings) or pass the basket to collect donations.

Our identified operating costs are as follows:

- Room Rentals
- Internet and digital media costs
- Copying/Laminating costs
- Coffee / Tea supplies for meetings

Miscellaneous costs such as participation costs for community events and recovery focused events we identify as beneficial to promote LifeRing Canada.

Donors should be encouraged to make online donations if they indicate that they would like to have an official donation receipt for income tax purposes.

Online donations can be made using QR code or Canada Helps and directly through the LifeRing Canada website using a credit card or PayPal. Convenors should never use Canada Helps to deposit cash donations collected for LifeRing Canada. QR Code will be developed and forwarded to face-to-face meeting convenors.

Donors who wish to make an e-Transfer can send their donation to <u>info@liferingcanada.org</u> If they wish to have an official donation receipt for e-transferred donations it will also be necessary for them to send an email to <u>info@liferingcanada.org</u> requesting a receipt and provide their mailing address.

This additional step is necessary because the CRA requires donors to provide their mailing address to the charity in order for it to issue an official donation receipt.

Donations that are collected from face-to-face meetings should be tallied and reported on STAT sheet, and deposited to their own account then e-transferred to info@liferingcanada.org and not deposited to Canada Helps directly.

- 1) Calculate donation from basket
- 2) Include in STAT recording
- 3) Deposit to your bank account
- 4) Do e-transfer to <u>info@liferingcanada.org</u> with description "<u>Name-Cash Donation-Name of Meeting"</u>

Canada Helps issues official donation receipts for donations made through their website. LifeRing Canada will issue official donation receipts for donations made through our website and by e-Transfer as long as the donor provides their full mailing address. Receipts will be issued prior to February 28 of the year following the year the donation is made for regular weekly or monthly online donations. One-time online donations of \$20 or more will also be eligible to receive an official donation receipt.

Face-to-face meetings meeting costs will be reported with the STATS that are collected in preparation for Board of Directors meetings. Receipts should be submitted, and costs are only for coffee/tea supplies. Any other costs must be approved by the Board of Directors before purchases are made.

Room rental expenses should be identified at the beginning of each rental year and submitted to ensure rental costs are always fulfilled. LifeRing Canada will be responsible to ensure that rentals are always covered. Money collected from each meeting will be applied to the overall costs of room rentals.

If there are other purchases required associated with an open face to face meeting, they should be submitted before-hand to the board for approval and then all receipts will need to be submitted.

Closed recovery facilities may desire to donate to our organization all or a portion of the collections from their meetings. It is suggested that all donations are accounted for and recorded and submitted the Financial Officer of LifeRing Canada in the manner that is proscribed by the Board of Directors.

Bylaw Addition – October 2025 Approved by Board of Directors for the LifeRing Canada AGM

LIFERING CANADA SOCIAL MEDIA STANDARDS AND PRACTICES

WHY DO WE USE SOCIAL MEDIA?

LifeRing Canada uses social media as a means to broadcast information and invitations to the public – i.e. new meetings, events, news blog pieces, etc. - by sharing original content to attract attention to our brand, gain new members across Canada and abroad, and drive donations to our organization.

WHAT SOCIAL MEDIA PLATFORMS/TOOLS DO WE USE?

The Board of Directors of LifeRing Canada has the responsibility to determine what social media programs will be utilized by the organization. Those may change from time to time but will always be approved by the Board and will comply fully with LIFERING CANADA SOCIAL MEDIA STANDARDS AND PRACTICES.

WHO DECIDES ON AND CREATES OUR SOCIAL MEDIA CONTENT?

The volunteers to our social media work and web designer currently have experience in our social media platforms are primarily those who social media is discussed and decided upon. One person is generally "in-charge" of creating/managing the content on the platforms and designated by the Board of Directors (Social Media Manager). Our social media may come into play across all of the various LifeRing Canada groups such as the Board of Directors and Meeting Convenors, and in addition to planned contents. The Social Media Manager may also work autonomously to create and post content as desired or where they see a need.

If there are questions or concerns, the above volunteers should come forward to the current board to clarify.

The documentation and security of current passwords and access to platforms are to be kept confidential at all times.

Administrators in the organization - a current sitting board member also have access to and administrative rights on all of the platforms, and <u>any changes in passwords or other login</u> <u>credentials created need to be sent to them</u>. They may also post any time they desire or see a need.

No one else should be given access to any of our platforms at any time unless designated to do so by leadership.

WHO HAS ACCESS?

All our online platform accounts are password protected and require specific usernames and passwords to access. Before anyone can use them, they must be vetted and approved by the Volunteers for social media, given their own LifeRing email address to use and from which to work out of, and then the accounts' specific login credentials will be disclosed. This information is confidential and should not be given to anyone either inside or outside the organization without specific consent given by LifeRing Canada leadership. Access may be rescinded as roles within and without the organization change or denied if general rules of online conduct or engagement are not followed (as per "Rules of Engagement" below).

WHAT ARE OUR RULES OF ENGAGEMENT?

With great access comes great responsibility: When you are posting on LifeRing Canada social media, first and foremost you must remember that you are posting, commenting, replying, Liking, and/or all other activities under the LifeRing name, you are not posting as yourself nor merely representing LifeRing Canada, *you are posting AS LIFERING*. Therefore, at all times, you must be:

- Professional
- Courteous
- Respectful
- Inclusive
- Apolitical
- Secular
- Non-controversial
- Non-confrontational
- Represent LifeRing's basic principles such as the 3 S philosophy, Sobriety, Self-help & Secularity, et all
- ❖ Use appropriate grammar which reflects the organization is posting, not you personally (i.e. using "we", "our" and "us", not "I", "they", or "them")

If something comes up that you're not sure how to handle, please ask for help or direction from your committee or LifeRing Canada leadership.

LifeRing Canada does have to respect others' recovery pathways, opinions, and points of view, and social media being what it is sometimes people will say things that we don't agree with or that come across as rude, disrespectful, or discourteous, and that's just part of life on the internet. For the most part you let people say what they want to say without moderation or interference, but if you do choose to respond, refer to the above and proceed with caution. Most people will respond to kindness and respect with kindness and respect.

However, LifeRing Canada does not have to accept or tolerate harassment, verbal abuse, offensive language or commentary, or misrepresentations of what who we are or what we're about on our

posts toward us or anyone else by anyone. In any case where you see, think, or feel that any of that is happening, it is acceptable to:

- Remove the post, and/or
- Respectfully but firmly request that the poster refrain from making the same kind of commentary or engaging in the unacceptable behavior again, with a warning
- If the commentary/behavior persists in spite of the request/warning, block the user from the Page

Again, if you have any questions or concerns about any issue, please ask for assistance from your LifeRing Canada leadership/board of directors.

Copywrite - November 2025 - LifeRing Secular Recovery Society Canada